
Minutes of Regular Meeting, July 22, 2025                  1 

MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

HORRY COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY, INC. 

July 22, 2025 

 

The Horry County Solid Waste Authority, Inc. held a Board Meeting on Tuesday, July 22, 2025, at 3:00 

P.M., at the Authority’s Administrative Office, 1886 Highway 90, Conway, South Carolina. In 

accordance with the Freedom of Information Act, notices setting forth the date, time, and place of the 

meeting were mailed to the news media. 

 

Present were the following Board Members: Robert J. Kemp, Chairman; Pam J. Creech, Vice Chairman; 

W. Norfleet Jones, Secretary; Amos C. Berry, Sr., Treasurer and Board Member Bo Ives. Board 

Members Dr. Albert G. Hayward and Wayne Fox were not in attendance.  

 

Corporal Eric Zink and Captain Crystal Buckingham from the Horry County Police Department, Horry 

County Administrator Barry Spivey and Amelia Wood represented the public in attendance. There were 

no members of the media present. 

 

The following individuals were also in attendance: Danny Knight, Executive Director; Ed Marr, 

Assistant Executive Director; Esther Murphy, Director; Jan Bitting, Director; Stephanie Todd, Director 

and staff members Chris Calhoun, Josh Nesbit, Drake Morris, Trina Cooke, Katherine Bell, and Monica 

Collier. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Kemp called the meeting to order and asked Mr. Jones to render the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Mr. Ives led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mr. Jones moved to approve the Agenda as presented. There was a second by Ms. Creech and the 

Motion was carried. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairman Kemp asked for any questions on or amendments to the Minutes of the Regular Meeting held 

on June 24, 2025; however, there were none. 

 

Mr. Berry moved to approve the Minutes of the June 24, 2025, Regular Meeting.  There was a 

second by Mr. Jones and the Motion was carried. 

  

Mr. Jones moved to approve the Minutes of the June 24, 2025, Annual Meeting.  There was a 

second by Ms. Creech and the Motion was carried. 

 

PUBLIC INPUT 

Chairman Kemp stated there was no Public Input. 

 

Recycling and Corporate Affairs Update – Mrs. Murphy offered an update of various projects in the 

Recycling and Corporate Affairs Division that were included on pages 16-21. 

 



Minutes of Regular Meeting, July 22, 2025                  2 

FY2026 SCDES Grant Update – Mrs. Murphy provided an update on the FY2026 SCDES grant 

applications. She reported that the SWA was awarded $14,750 through the Used Oil Grant. Mrs. 

Murphy stated that the amount signified a 45% reduction from the original funding request. Mrs. 

Murphy expressed appreciation for the funding received. 

 

Mrs. Murphy stated that the Solid Waste Grant and General Recycling Grant were funded at $15,750 

an increase of 5% over the original request. She reported that the additional funds were provided to 

support professional development funding. Mrs. Murphy expressed the staff’s sincere gratitude and 

appreciation for the enhanced funding. 

 

Mr. Knight inquired whether additional funds were available from the State. Mrs. Murphy responded 

that she was unsure, that she had not heard anything. 

 

Upcoming Events – Mrs. Murphy highlighted two key items on the Upcoming Events list. She said 

that the Green Tie Luncheon would be held on September 17th in Columbia, SC. She said if any 

Board Members were interested in attending, to contact either herself or Mr. Knight. 

 

Mrs. Murphy reported that the Annual SWANA Conference formerly known as WasteCon had been 

renamed to ReCom and wanted to make the Board aware of this change. She indicated that the 

conference would take place in November. 

 

Ms. Creech stated while reviewing the comparison of SWA facilities, tours, and trainings, she 

observed a decrease in the number of staff trainings. Mrs. Murphy explained that the staff training 

listed under businesses refers to training conducted outside of the SWA. She clarified that when a 

new group begins using the cardboard program, the SWA staff goes to their location to train their 

employees on the proper use of the containers. She added that the number of these trainings depends 

on how many new customers are added to programs. Mrs. Murphy stated that this is an area staff 

focuses on each year. 

 

Chairman Kemp said that, along the same lines, facility tours had increased, which he viewed as a 

positive sign. He said that more people are coming out to see the work that was being done and 

remarked that few truly understand the complexity of the operation. He said it was encouraging.  

 

Ms. Creech asked what kind of feedback the SWA receives from people who take the tours. Mrs. 

Murphy responded that most of the time, it’s sheer amazement. She shared that when leadership 

groups visit, she often asks how many have seen a landfill before, and said that usually, very few 

have. Mrs. Murphy said that many view the landfill as an engineering masterpiece. She added that 

when visitors tour the MRF, it takes their impression to the next level when it comes to recycling.  

 

Caught Green Handed Update – Mrs. Murphy informed the Board the June “Caught Green 

Handed” recipient was Mr. Christopher DiNucci. She stated Mr. DiNucci was a recycler at the Lake 

Arrowhead Road Recycling Center and he was thankful to be recognized. 

 

Finance and Administration Update – Mrs. Bitting offered an update of the following items which 

were included as pages 22 – 38 in the Board Packet. 

 

Monthly Finance Reports – Mrs. Bitting reported that overall tipping fees had increased 11.12% 

over last year at the same time. Mrs. Bitting said that Solid Waste revenue was at 105.34% of budget, 



Minutes of Regular Meeting, July 22, 2025                  3 

Mixed Construction revenue was at 105.37% of budget projection and Yard Waste revenue was at 

117.25% of budget.  

Mrs. Bitting said that Recyclable Sales were at 125.21% of budget. She Mrs. Bitting stated the C&D 

Processing Facility saved 38 days of airspace. Mrs. Bitting reported that the Material Recycling 

Facility saved 96 days of airspace. 

 

Mrs. Bitting reported for the month, expenses over revenue was $274,835.04. She said the SWA’s 

year-to-date revenue over expenses was $4,325,643.94. 

 

Mrs. Bitting provided an update on the operating revenue and container rental revenue. She stated 

that container service fees were a newly implemented this year. Mrs. Bitting explained that the SWA 

began charging for the service, but the services were not in effect for the entire fiscal year. She said 

that it took a couple of months to fully implement the system. Mrs. Bitting reported that $1.5 Million 

had been budgeted, and staff exceeded that amount. She stated that this achievement speaks volumes, 

emphasizing that no customers were lost throughout the year. Mrs. Bitting expressed satisfaction 

with how effectively operations were handled. 

 

Mrs. Bitting reported that revenue reached 102.44% of the budget, while expenses came in at 

91.54%. She expressed appreciation to the staff for their continued dedication and effort throughout 

the year. 

 

Mrs. Bitting gave an overview of the landfill tonnage and reported that Solid Waste was up by 2.29%, 

Yard Waste was 6.61%, and Mixed Construction was 5.49% as compared to the same time last year. 

 

Mrs. Bitting informed the Board that both the yearly audit and the workers' compensation audit are 

scheduled for August. 

 

Chairman Kemp remarked that it’s remarkable to see 551,000 tons of material processed through the 

SWA landfill. 

 

Operations and Planning Update – Mrs. Todd presented the following updates which were included 

on pages 39– 56 in the Board Packet. 

 

Landfill Update – Mrs. Todd reported the landfill had its monthly inspection on Tuesday, July 3rd.  

She stated that all evaluated areas had been inspected and found to be satisfactory. 

 

Driver of the Month Update – Mrs. Todd said the July Driver of the Month was Mr. Dana Lewis 

who works for GFL. 

 

C&D Recycling Update – Mrs. Todd reported that material processed at the C&D Recycling 

Facility in June 2025 increased by 76.51% compared to June 2024. 

 

MRF Update – Mrs. Todd reported a 4.52% increase in the amount of recyclables received at the 

Materials Recovery Facility (MRF) in June 2025 as compared to June 2024. 

 

Mrs. Todd provided a comparison of the fiber market, reporting a decrease in cardboard and 

increased slightly for mixed paper prices for the month of June 2025. 

 



Minutes of Regular Meeting, July 22, 2025                  4 

Mrs. Todd reported that fiber prices remain stable and are aligning with typical seasonal patterns, 

however, prices in the Southeast are expected to stay slightly above the national average. She also 

reported that although plastic prices continue to decline, staff was still encountering rates well above 

the national average. 

 

Mrs. Todd commended the staff at the Materials Recovery Facility (MRF) for their diligent efforts 

in maintaining high cleanliness standards. 

 

Mr. Ives expressed astonishment at the amount in demolition-related construction being collected by 

the staff. Mr. Ives asked what the exact reasons were for the change. Mrs. Todd explained that beyond 

the physical upgrades to the SW6 building and the addition of new line, there had been a strong push 

to maximize intake of materials that do not require shredding. She said this included streamlining 

processes and reassigning resources to ensure that anything capable of being processed without 

shredding was handled efficiently. 

 

Ms. Creech inquired whether adequate storage space was available for materials requiring storage.  

Mrs. Todd said that while cardboard was currently being sold, it was frequently wet due to the recent 

rain. She stated as a result, it was sold at a discounted rate. Mrs. Todd informed the Board that staff 

was working diligently to move materials quickly and prioritize getting trucks loaded and out, which 

helps alleviate the need for storage space. Mr. Knight informed the Board that the SWA was not 

responsible for the wet material.     

 

Chairman Kemp stated that the decrease in rejects was remarkable, emphasizing that it was the result 

of significant hard work. He expressed sincere appreciation for the dedication and efforts of the staff. 

 

Executive Director Update – Mr. Knight offered an update which was included as page 57 in the Board 

Packet. 

 

Waccamaw Publishing Article on SWA- July 10, 2025 – Mr. Knight informed the Board that a 

newspaper had been placed at each seat. He expressed pride in the SWA staff and commended them 

for their work. Mr. Knight provided an update on the article published in the Waccamaw Publishing 

Newspaper. Mr. Knight stated that he had reviewed some of the public comments, acknowledging 

that while the organization cannot control such remarks, the overall feedback appeared to be fair. He 

also addressed several concerns about recycling that were mentioned in the article. Mr. Knight 

expressed his gratitude to the Board for their continued support. 

 

Mr. Ives also praised the staff and their commendable efforts. He specifically highlighted the young 

man who wrote the article, saying he did a fabulous job. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Chairman Kemp said that there were no formal Committee reports this month. He stated that a meeting 

took place recently with County representatives regarding recycling. Chairman Kemp said that County 

Administrator Barry Spivey attended the meeting along with representatives from other organizations to 

discuss key concerns. Chairman Kemp expressed hope for positive feedback resulting from those 

discussions. 

 

 

 



Minutes of Regular Meeting, July 22, 2025                  5 

OLD BUSINESS 

There was no Old Business to come before the Board.  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Sale of Surplus Equipment – Mr. Knight informed the Board that the sale of surplus equipment was 

included in the Board Packet. He said that the purpose of the list was to obtain permission to sell the 

listed items; however, it was not a requirement that all equipment on the list be sold. 

 

Chairman Kemp expressed concern regarding the disposal of equipment that, although beyond its useful 

life, might still serve as a valuable backup. He emphasized that if there was only one other functioning 

unit, and it were to fail, having a secondary option could be critical. Chairman Kemp stated that 

maintaining adequate redundancy was essential to ensure operational dependability. 

Mr. Ives inquired if staff could lock in a reserve price on the surplus equipment to be guaranteed an equal 

amount. Knight confirmed that this approach was possible. General discussion ensued.  

 

Mr. Ives made a Motion to approve the sale of surplus equipment. There was a second by Mr. 

Jones and the Motion was carried. 

Committee Appointments – Chairman Kemp distributed a list of Committee Appointments to the 

Board. 

 

Roundtable Discussion – Ms. Creech requested clarification regarding the handout, seeking further 

details on its contents or intended purpose. Mrs. Murphy informed the Board that the handout was the 

SWA Summer Newsletter, which is available online. She stated that the newsletter had also been 

distributed via an email group. Mrs. Murphy added that the newsletter includes details about upcoming 

events and activities planned for the remainder of the summer. 

 

Ms. Creech remarked that the newsletter looks great and expressed her appreciation for the battery 

awareness messaging. She also shared her enthusiasm about the organization’s collaboration with HEC. 

Ms. Creech inquired whether HEC publishes a newsletter, to which Mrs. Murphy responded that they 

produced a monthly magazine. 

 

Ms. Creech asked whether the SWA advertise in the HEC magazine. Mrs. Murphy said that the SWA 

could but would have to pay for the inclusion. Mrs. Murphy stated that one of SWA’s ongoing priorities 

was to promote the conservation of energy and the protection of environmental resources. 

Chairman Kemp shared that he recently read about promising advancements in battery technology. He 

mentioned that researchers are developing new types of lithium-ion and aluminum-ion batteries designed 

to be safer and less prone to explosion. General discussion ensued.  

 

Chairman Kemp expressed his appreciation to Corporal Zink and Captain Buckingham of the Horry 

County Police Department, as well as to Mr. Spivey. He also extended his thanks to Ms. Wood for 

attending the meeting. 

 

 

 

 



Minutes of Regular Meeting, July 22, 2025                  6 

MOTION TO ADJOURN 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Berry moved, seconded by Mr. Jones, 

to adjourn the meeting. The Motion was carried, and the July Board Meeting was adjourned at 3:45 

P.M. 

 

Minutes approved on August 26, 2025. 

 

HORRY COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY, INC. 

    

  BY: _____________________________________ (L. S.) 

            Robert J. Kemp, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ (L. S.) 

W. Norfleet Jones, Secretary 

 

___________________________________ (L. S.) 

                                                                                    Amos C. Berry, Sr. 

 

___________________________________ (L. S.) 

                        Pam J. Creech 

 

___________________________________ (L. S.) 

                                                   Wayne Fox 

 

___________________________________ (L. S.)  

                          Albert G. Hayward 

        

___________________________________ (L. S.)  

Bo Ives   

  

 

 

 

 

 


